
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

Petition Hearing - 
Cabinet Member for 
Environment, 
Housing & 
Regeneration
Date: WEDNESDAY, 23 MARCH 

2022

Time: 7.00 PM

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 6 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend. 
This meeting may also be 
broadcast live.
You can view the agenda 
at www.hillingdon.gov.uk or 
use a smart phone camera 
and scan the code below:

Cabinet Member hearing the petition(s): 

Councillor Eddie Lavery, Cabinet Member 
for Environment, Housing & Regeneration

How the hearing works: 

The petition organiser (or his/her nominee) 
can address the Cabinet Member for a 
short time and in turn the Cabinet Member 
may also ask questions. 

Local ward councillors are invited to these 
hearings and may also be in attendance. 

After hearing all the views expressed, the 
Cabinet Member will make a formal 
decision. This decision will be published 
and sent to the petition organisers shortly 
after the meeting confirming the action to 
be taken by the Council.

Published: 15 March 2022
Contact: Liz Penny 
Tel: 01895 250185
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk

AA
Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/


Useful information for 
petitioners attending

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre.  Uxbridge underground 
station, with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan 
lines, is a short walk away. Limited parking is 
available at the Civic Centre. For details on 
availability and how to book a parking space, 
please contact Democratic Services. 

Please enter via main reception and visit the 
security desk to sign-in and collect a visitor’s 
pass. You will then be directed to the 
Committee Room. 

Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms. 

Attending, reporting and filming of meetings

For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online.

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer.

In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations.



Agenda

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

1 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

2 To confirm that the business of the meeting will take place in public

3 To consider the report of the officers on the following petition received:

PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC AND PRESS MAY ATTEND

Start 
Time

Title of Report Ward Page

4 7.00pm Wallington Close, West Ruislip - Petition 
Requesting New Fencing and 
Restrictions on Vehicular Access 
Beyond St Catherine's Farm Court

West Ruislip 1 - 14



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 1 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

WALLINGTON CLOSE, WEST RUISLIP – PETITION REQUESTING NEW 
FENCING AND RESTRICTIONS ON VEHICULAR ACCESS BEYOND ST 
CATHERINE’S FARM COURT 
 
Cabinet Member(s)  Cllr Eddie Lavery 
   
Cabinet Portfolio(s)  Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing and Regeneration 
   
Officer Contact(s)  Neil Dowsing, Place Directorate 

Jenny Evans, Place Directorate 
   
Papers with report  Appendix 1 - Background information concerning recent 

improvement works 
Appendix 2 - O.S. Map 
Appendix 3 – Petitioner Requests Actioned 
Appendix 4 – Ground Floor View of St. Catherine’s Court from 
Petitioners’ Properties 
Appendix 5 – Additional Information from Petitioners as part of 
their petition 

 

HEADLINES 
 
Summary 
 

 To inform the Cabinet Member that a petition has been received 
requesting maintenance of trees and shrubs along the Wallington 
Close side of Cannon Brook. To help meet the petitioner’s requests 
an infill fence to bridge the gap in the existing fence alongside the 
car park at St. Catherine’s Farm Court has been installed. Signage 
advising no vehicular access beyond the Car Park has been 
erected.  

   
Putting our 
Residents First 

 This report supports the following Council objectives of Our People. 

   
Financial Cost  The cost associated with the recommendations to this report is £1k. 
   
Relevant Select 
Committee 

 Environment, Housing and Regeneration Select Committee. 

   
Relevant Ward(s)  West Ruislip 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing and Regeneration:  

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 2 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

1. Meets with petitioners and listens to their concerns;  
2. Notes the work carried out to date to address the requests of petitioners; and 
3. Determines any further action to be taken to address issues raised by petitioners. 
 
Reasons for recommendations 
 
The Petition Hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of 
their concerns and suggestions. 
 
Alternative options considered / risk management 
 
None at this stage. 
 
Select Committee comments 
 
None at this stage. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
The petition 
 
In September 2021, a petition signed by 20 residents in Wallington Close, Ruislip, was received 
requesting the following: 
 

• Maintenance of trees and shrubs along the banks of the Wallington Close section of 
Cannon Brook and the area of Council land that backs onto the fence of 56 Howletts Lane. 

• Installation of a staggered fence section behind the newly erected fence alongside the car 
park currently under construction in St Catherine’s Farm Court. 

• Erection of signage advising no vehicular access beyond the car park. 
 
The petitioners helpfully provided further information in the attached document set out in 
Appendix 5. As set out in this report, the Council has sought to resolve issues raised in the 
petition under "intelligent intervention”, but the lead petitioner has since raised issues they would 
wish to discuss further on behalf of the petitioners. 
 
Background 
 
St. Catherine’s Farm Court is a residential complex comprising Sheltered Housing apartments. 
Its residents are elderly with many suffering from mobility and dementia related disabilities. 
Sharing the site are a number of leasehold properties. The Sheltered Housing residents have 
onsite parking provision in a specified area.  
 
The leasehold residents’ block located adjacent to the Sheltered Housing residents has a 
separate parking facility adjacent to Wallington Close. This parking provision is accessed over a 

Page 2



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 3 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

footbridge crossing over a small stream (Cannon Brook). This parking provision is shared with 
other residents of Wallington Close.  
Work undertaken 
 
A recent improvement scheme (see Appendix 1) has been carried out to resurface the access 
drive, increase parking provision and install a traffic barrier. This is intended to slow traffic down 
on entering the site and control the number of delivery vehicles entering the site which are not 
serving the Sheltered Housing residents specifically. Following concerns about the traffic barrier 
received from the residents of the leasehold block adjacent to the Sheltered Housing residents, it 
was agreed that they would be issued with Fobs for the traffic barrier, on the condition that they 
were only to be used for bulk deliveries, removals etc. 
 
The Council has carried out the following work regarding the concerns raised by petitioners: 
 
1. Lack of maintenance of trees and shrubs along the Wallington Close side of Cannon Brook 

and along the fence of 56 Howletts Lane. This maintenance has now been carried out and 
going forward is to be included in a planned maintenance programme. 
  

2. Request for additional fencing over and above a previous line of fencing that had been 
installed to prevent light pollution from cars beaming over into the homes along Wallington 
Close while parking. This additional piece of fence to close the gap has now been installed. 

  
3. Additional signage to be erected preventing vehicles from venturing beyond the car parking 

provision adjacent to the car headlight protecting fence barrier. This has now been installed. 
 
Attempts have been made to address the issues raised; however, the lead petitioner has raised 
ongoing issues regarding these which they would like to discuss further. 
 
Ongoing issues raised by Petitioners 
  
Since implementing the measures requested in the petition, the petitioners have come forward to 
say that the measures taken still have not met their expectations as their outlook on St. 
Catherine’s Farm Court is compromised due to the occasional presence of cars or delivery 
vehicles. They are therefore suggesting an extension to the existing fence – see Appendix 4 
which shows the current views from the ground floor gardens of petitioners’ residences as a visual 
guide. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
£114k from the Warm Safe Dry work-stream within the HRA Works to Stock 2021/22 capital 
budget has been released for the improvements to the parking and access road at St Catherine’s 
Farm Court. 
 
Within this £114k there was £5k allocated for contingency; the costs associated with the 
recommendations within this report detailed above with a cost of £1k will be funded from the 
contingency element within the £114k allocated for the St Catherines Farm Court Car Park 
Improvement project contained within the HRA Works to Stock 2021/22 capital programme. 

Page 3



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 4 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

RESIDENT BENEFIT & CONSULTATION 
 
The benefit or impact upon Hillingdon residents, service users and communities 
 
The petitioner’s requests have been implemented. Any possible car headlight pollution has been 
resolved as a result of the fence extension and a No Parking sign has been installed to Highways’ 
specifications. The Horticultural maintenance team has carried out a clearance of vegetation to 
allay resident concerns that it caused flooding and blocked drainage channels 
 
Consultation carried out or required 
 
None at this stage.  
 

CORPORATE CONSIDERATIONS 
 
Corporate Finance 
 
Corporate Finance has reviewed this report and concurs with the financial implications above, 
noting that the cost associated with the recommendations detailed above of £1k will be fully 
funded from the 2021/22 HRA Works to Stock capital programme. 
 
Legal 
 
The Borough Solicitor confirms that there are no specific legal implications arising from this 
report. 
 
Infrastructure / Asset Management 
 
None at this stage.  
 
Comments from other relevant service areas 
 
None at this stage.  
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Petition received.  
 

TITLE OF ANY APPENDICES 
 
Appendix 1 – Background information concerning recent improvement works 
Appendix 2 - O.S. Map 
Appendix 3 – Petitioner Requests Actioned 
Appendix 4 – Ground Floor View of St. Catherine’s Court from petitioners’ properties 
Appendix 5 – Additional Information from petitioners as part of their petition 

Page 4

mailto:corporatefinancecomments@hillingdon.gov.uk
mailto:corporatefinancecomments@hillingdon.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 5 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

APPENDIX 1 - Background information concerning recent improvement works 
 
St. Catherine’s Farm Court has recently been subject to a programme of improvement works 
which received Planning Permission. SEE Fig 1.  
 
The works consisted of the access drive into the site being re-laid. An additional 8 parking spaces 
have been installed which was also the subject of the fence being erected to prevent car headlight 
light pollution to Wallington Close residents living opposite. SEE – Fig 4.  A traffic barrier has been 
erected near the site entrance. SEE Fig 2.  This traffic barrier was installed to prevent non-
residents from using the site as a parking facility and prevent access by numerous grocery and 
parcel delivery firms whose Sat-Nav systems guide them into the site, rather than around to the 
Wallington Close parking area for drop-offs. In addition, the traffic barrier would act as a traffic 
calming measure for those vehicles whose access is legitimate and prevent risk of accidents to 
residents and staff. The barrier is Fob activated and these Fobs have been issued to St. 
Catherine’s Farm Court sheltered housing residents so that they can park on the site. There were 
however concerns from Leaseholders at the St. Catherine’s Farm Court site that the barrier would 
create difficulties such as for the occasional delivery of bulk items e.g. Furniture and Removals. 
Following extensive dialogue, it was agreed that Leaseholders would also receive Fobs but on 
the condition that Leaseholders use them responsibly. Having addressed the petitioners’ requests 
for a Fence Extension and a No Parking Sign. SEE Figs 5 & 7, officers believe that no further 
action is necessary.  
 

 
 
Fig.1 

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 6 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 
 
Fig 2 – Traffic Barrier 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 7 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

Appendix 2 - O.S. Map 
 

 
 
 
 
Fig 3 - St. Catherine’s Farm Court Site-Plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 8 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

Appendix 3 - Petitioner Requests Actioned 
 

 
 
Fig 4 - Previously Existing Fence 
 

 
Fig 5 - Fence Extension Completed 
 

Page 8



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 9 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 

 
Fig 6 - Grounds Maintenance Completed 
 

 
Fig 7 - No Parking Sign Installed 
 
 
 

Page 9



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 10 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 
Appendix 4 – Wallington Close Petitioners Ground Floor Views of St. Catherine’s Farm 
Court 
 

 
52 Wallington Close 

Page 10



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 11 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 
54 Wallington Close 

 
56 Wallington Close 

Page 11



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 12 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 
58 Wallington Close 

 
60 Wallington Close 

Page 12



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 13 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

 
62 Wallington Close 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Cabinet Member Petition Hearing Report – 23 March 2022 Page 14 
(Part 1 - Public) 
 

APPENDIX 5 – additional information from petitioners as part of their petition 
 

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	4 Wallington Close, West Ruislip - Petition Requesting New Fencing and Restrictions on Vehicular Access Beyond St Catherine's Farm Court
	Cllr Eddie Lavery
	Cabinet Member for Environment, Housing and Regeneration
	Reasons for recommendations
	The Petition Hearing will provide a valuable opportunity to hear directly from the petitioners of their concerns and suggestions.
	Alternative options considered / risk management


